HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 1, 2011
1:34 p.m

1: 34: 31 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmmittee neeting
to order at 1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representative M ke Doogan

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Cuttenberg
Representative M ke Hawker (alternate)
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Anne Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Legal Services
Section, Cri m nal Di vi si on, Department of Law Davi d
Wl son, Sergeant, Alaska State Troopers; Representative
M ke Chenault, Sponsor; Tom Wight, Staff, Representative
M ke Chenault; Representative M ke Chenault.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Quinlan Steiner, Director, Alaska Public Defender Agency,
Depart nent of Adm ni stration; Dani el Fauske, Chi ef
Executive Oficer and Executive D rector, Al aska Housing
Fi nance Cor porati on.

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



HB 127 CRI MES | NVOLVI NG M NORS/ STALKI NG | NFO

CS HB 127(FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with
acconpanying new indetermnate fiscal note from
the Departnment of Admnistration and previously
published notes: FN 1 (DPS), FN 2 (LAW, FN 3
(ADM, FN 4 (COR), FN 5 (DHS).

HB 175 COURT APPEARANCES; ARSON; | NFRACTI ONS

HB 175 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

HB 203 | N- STATE NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE FUND

CS HB 203 (FIN was REPORTED out of commttee
with a "do pass" recommendation and with new zero
i npact fiscal note from the Departnment of
Revenue.

#hb127
HOUSE BI LL NO. 127

"An Act relating to the crimes of stalking, online
enticenent of a mnor, unlawful exploitation of a
m nor, endangering the welfare of a child, sending an
explicit imge of a mnor, harassnent, distribution of
i ndecent material to mnors, and m sconduct involving
confidential information; relating to probation; and
providing for an effective date."

1: 36: 24 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTION, CRIMNAL DI VISION, DEPARTMENT OF LAW expl ai ned
that the governor introduced HB 127 as part of his
initiative to reduce and elinmnate the tragedy of donestic
vi ol ence and sexual assault. The bill strengthened sone of
the laws addressing the crinmes. The bill also wupdated
stat utes to enconpass new technol ogi cal nmeans of
victim zation. The bill expanded the definitions in the
stalking law and raised the penalty for online enticenent
of a mnor to a Class B felony. The legislation raised the
penalty for unlawful exploitation of a mnor to a Class A
felony for all offenders. The bill adopted a new provision
related to "sexting," classified as the intention to
specifically annoy or humliate another person. The offence

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



woul d be a Class B nisdeneanor if distributed and a Cass A
m sdeneanor if posted on a website that was accessible to
the public. She noted that the bill adopted two m sdeneanor
of fenses  of m suse of confidential i nformation. She
di scussed that portions of HB 75 were included in HB 127.

DAVI D W LSON, SERGEANT, ALASKA STATE TROOPERS nmde hinsel f
avai | abl e for questions fromthe commttee.

1: 42: 24 PM

Representative Edgnon comented on the fiscal not es
attached to the bill. He asked about the bill's
requirenents.

M. WIson responded that nost investigations would be
streanm i ned W th an adm ni strative subpoena. The
adm ni strative subpoena would |essen the burden on state
resources. He nentioned one provision, which included the
protection of the victim in sexting incidents which also
had an effect on resources. He admtted that his
experience included investigation as opposed to budget
rel ated issues.

1: 46: 48 PM

Represent ati ve Edgnon appreciated M. WIlson's testinony.

Co- Chair Thomas presented a hypothetical situation in which
teenagers circul ate i nappropriate pictures.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that a conviction for a sexting
of fence required proof that the inmage's distributor had the
specific intent to annoy or humliate the subject of the
phot ogr aph.

Co- Chair Thomas asked specifically about a case involving
two m nors.

Ms. Carpeneti responded that the Division of Juvenile
Justice would handl e cases involving m nors.

Co- Chair Thomas wondered whet her teenagers would be guilty

of a crime due to circulating pictures of an ex-boyfriend
or girlfriend around the internet.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



Ms. Carpeneti replied that if evidence existed proving that
the person distributed the photo with intent to annoy or
humliate the other mnor they could be prosecuted for a
crine. She stated that adults were prosecuted in adult
court and mnors in juvenile court.

Co- Chair Thonas wondered about the provisions in the bil
related to i nsurance and driver's |icenses.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the offences were correctible
The bill would reduce the CCass B msdeneanor to an
i nfracti on.

Co-Chair Thomas was glad to hear that the crinme was reduced
and that it was a correctible offence.

Ms. Carpeneti agreed.

1:51: 00 PM

Representative WIson wondered how the terns "annoy" and
"hum | i ate" were nmeasured.

M. WIlson answered that offenders frequently admt the
i ntent. He discussed that other tines, incrimnating
| anguage acconpanied a photo. He also relayed that the
intent was sonetinmes difficult to determ ne.

Representative WIson wondered whether the |anguage used in
the bill was enployed often in other |egislation. She
coomented on the difficulty presented when attenpting to
measure the terns "annoy" and "humliate.”

M. WIson responded that he was unaware of alternative
options for the ternmns.

Representative Gara wondered about Page 5 and the issue
related to tinme in custody. He recalled that a person could
be retained in custody before bringing themto a judge for
24 hours. He wondered about the expansion to 48 hours.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the law required the state to
bring a person before a judicial officer in a tinely
manner, and that would not change. She discussed that it
was related to the tine a person was arrested and rel ated
to the ability to locate and talk with the victim She
believed it possible to locate and have conversations

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



wi t hin 24 hour s typically; however , t here wer e
circunstances that proved nore difficult. She asked M.
W son to provide exanpl es.

M. WIson recalled investigations where enough evidence
was gathered to justify apprehending a suspect, yet the
timng for arraignnent proved difficult because necessary
docunents were not yet <created. A delay to neet the
requi renents of the statute could result in the better
outcone. He relayed that the need for a delay happened
i nfrequently.

Representative Gara wondered about legislative intent
all ow ng 48 hours only in certain circunstances.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the admnistration would not
have a problemw th the expressed intent.

2: 00: 39 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough wondered about letters in her
commttee packet referring to constitutional issues. She
di scussed 11.61.128 (a). She wondered whet her t he
departnment mght speak to the constitutionality of the
legislation. She referred to a letter dated February 4,
2011 fromthe ACLU

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the letters addressed a | egal
challenge to the Al aska statute prohibiting distribution of
i ndecent materials to a mnor. This legislation made m nor
changes specifying the culpable nental state for the
of fense. The section called into question by the ACLU had
since been renoved from the bill. She recalled recent
nmotions for summary judgnents submtted by both sides of
the issue along with a notion to renove it to state court.

Vi ce-chair Fai r cl ough di scussed 11.61.128 addr essed
distribution of indecent material to a mnor. She asked
when the change or nodification occurred.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that nodification occurred in 2010 to
add protections, but the section was since renoved fromthe
bill.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough appreciated the Departnment of Law and
stood behind the |law that the state and | egislature passed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



to describe the terrible events that mnmight happen to
m nors. She stated that her interest was to keep kids safe.

2:04:49 PM

M. WIson discussed changes to 12.55.155, specifically
relating to the online exploitation of a mnor sentencing
criterion. He relayed that the departnment investigated
crimes against children. He explained the difference
bet ween reactive and proactive investigations.

M. WIson discussed the administrative subpoena in depth.
He explained that the identification of the potential for
crimnal activity utilizing email required the investigator
to contact the provider of the enumil service. The
investigator would then present the email service with a
request for information. A court process would then occur,
requiring a federal subpoena allowing the investigator to
obtain information regarding the location of a suspect. The
next step would be the application for a search warrant and
creation of a probabl e cause statenent.

2:10: 37 PM

M. WIson continued to discuss the adm nistrative subpoena
process. He explained the legal requirement for search
warrants. For urgent cases, the adm nistrative subpoena can
streamline the process. The search warrant was always
requi red despite possession of an adm nistrative subpoena.

Representative Gara expressed one remaining concern related
to the legislation. He discussed different types of
felonies and m sdeneanors. He questioned the validity of
claimng that the legislation creates an atnosphere that is
"tougher on crine."

M. WIlson replied that the «crines involving online
enticement of mnors occur if |aw enforcenment does nothing
to stop them The new | egislation would act preventatively.
The offenders tend to operate in a serial nature. He
coomented on the parody between the behavior of the
suspects enticing mnors online and those who are actively
commtting sexual abuse of a mnor. The legislation allows
investigators to practice in a proactive manor

2:15:38 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



Representative Gara wondered whether the legislation
attracted concerns regarding fairness from the Public
Def ender' s Agency.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, DI RECTOR, ALASKA PUBLI C DEFENDER AGENCY,
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION (via tel econference), wondered
whet her he had been referring to raising the penalties.

Representative Gara explained that he was wondering about
anyt hing in general.

M. Steiner responded that there had been discussion about
Section 7 when the bill had been originally introduced. The
| anguage had been changed and the agency's concerns had
been dramatically alleviated. He believed that the |anguage
related to specific intent would reduce the ability for
harm He expressed concerns that the change from 24 to 48
hours might allow the system to relax in its response
| eading to additional time spent in jail.

Representative Gara discussed M. Steiner's first concern
related to a dating couple texting imges back and forth to
each other. He wondered if the issue had been corrected.

M. Steiner believed that the specific intent |[|anguage
corrected the problem

2:20: 38 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered about the nunber of people he had
been required to defend that had accidentally viewed
por nogr aphy.

M. Steiner asked himto repeat the question.
Co-Chair Stoltze clarified that anecdotal i nformation
provided that <citizens occasionally "accidently" peruse
por nographic material. He wondered how many cases of this
nature were defended by the public defender.

M. Steiner asked if the question related to Section 7 of
the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that he had received reports of
t hese sorts of crines.

M. Steiner offered to report back to the conmttee.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



Representative Doogan wondered about Section 16 stating
"the comm ssioner may provide active supervision to a
person placed on probation for a m sdeneanor offence." He
wondered if the statenent was current |aw

Ms. Carpeneti replied that current |law provided that the
conmi ssi oner of corrections would provide probation
officers to superior court judges. She clarified that
peopl e convicted of felonies receive active supervision on
probation. She stated that wunder the state's current
practices t here was not active supervi si on of
m sdeneanants. She explained that the idea was entirely
experinment al .

Representati ve Doogan asked why the increased nunber of
supervised individuals was not reflected in the fiscal
not e.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the program was experinental
with a limted duration. She relayed that she did not have
i nformati on about the funding of the project.

Representati ve Doogan stated that he could not |ocate the
words "experimental program in the legislation. He stated
that the legislation would allow the comrssioner to
actively supervise m sdeneanants. He expressed concern that
the practice mght result in greater cost to the state.

Representative Doogan noted that Section 16 contained
i nformati on about subpoena power. He explained that he did
not approve of the notion that the Attorney Ceneral could
i ssue subpoenas. He asked about changes to the current |aw.

2:25:27 PM

Ms. Carpeneti replied that several problens were discovered
with the bill that passed l|ast year. She admtted that
drafting the l|egislation regarding subpoenas provided new
experiences for herself and her staff. One problem noted
was that the prior bill did not allow the Attorney Cenera

to have a designee. The reason for the potential subpoenas
was to retrieve the information from an internet service
provi der quickly.

Ms. Carpeneti informed the commttee that the second
problem involved the former bill specifying a particular

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



type of service; personal service by a |aw enforcenent
officer or certified mail. She stressed that neither option
provided a fast investigation. The proposed statute all owed
service to be made in any nanor authorized by law or
acceptable to the internet service provider. She added that
internet service providers accepted faxes for federal
subpoenas.

Ms. Carpeneti stated that the bill specified that a person
who served with an admi nistrative subpoena had a right to
ask the judge to quash the subpoena prior to the tine
allotted for response. She concluded that the proposed
| egi sl ati on addressed those problens recognized in the past
proposi tion.

Representative Gara recalled legislation passed in 2010
regardi ng pornographic videos and mnors. He asked if the
proposed | egislation dealt with such material.

Ms. Carpeneti replied no.

Vice-chair Fairclough discussed the fiscal notes. She
bel i eved that six was the total nunber of notes.

Ms. Carpeneti believed that the bill had four or five
fiscal notes.

2:29: 31 PM
AT EASE

2:31: 06 PM
RECONVENED

Representative Gara MOVED Anendnent 1.
Represent ati ve Hawker OBJECTED.

Representative Gara MOVED to AMEND the Anmendnent to change
the word inpracticable to inpractical on Page one, Line 9.

Hearing no objection, the anmendnent was anended.
Representative WIson wondered about a definition of the

words inpracticable and inpractical according to the
Departnent of Law.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



Ms. Carpeneti believed that "inpractical" was easier to
understand and that "inpracticable” was nore of a |egal
term

Representative Hawker discussed that his objection was
mai nt ai ned. He believed that the anmendnent nay nuddy the
waters. He did not like the inplication that the statute
said this

Co-Chair Stoltze agreed with Representative Hawker on the
practical inplications. He believed it had been expanded to
increase flexibility.

Representative Gara explained that the anmendnent would
allow the extra right to retain a person for 48 hours, only
with reasonable neasure to acconplish the process in 24
hours. He stated his preference to have the anendnent in
the statute, potentially drafted as a conceptual anmendnent.
He did not agree with the idea of retaining a person,
presuned innocent, wthout a bail hearing for 48 hours,
unl ess absol utely necessary.

Co- Chair Thomas wondered what the departnent's position was
on the anmendnent.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the departnment did not have
problem with the anendnent. She explained that she would
prefer to have the anmendnent in legislative intent over
statute.

2:39: 19 PM

Representati ve Doogan wondered whether a tracking nethod
exi sted to docunent the ampunt of tine a person nust wait,
whether it is 24 or 48 hours?

Ms. Carpeneti replied no. A nethod of collecting the
information required a study, which she was happy to do.
She noted that it was not unconmon for a defendant to be
too intoxicated for arraignnment.

Representative Gara had to depart for a Resources neeting.

Representative Joule wondered whether an acconpanying
letter of intent that m ght solve the problem

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



Ms. Carpeneti responded that a letter of intent was
hel pful .

Representative Joul e responded in the affirmative.

Rol I Call:
Nay: 7
Yay: 4

The MOTION FAILED (7 to 4).

2:43: 00 PM

Representative WIson asked about the length of study
required to produce val uable results.

Ms. Carpeneti responded that one year of know edge would
typically deliver necessary data. She pointed out that she
was not an expert on statistical inquiries.

Representative WIlson wished to know if |legislation was
effective.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to report CS HB 127 (FIN) out
of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

Represent ati ve Doogan OBJECTED for di scussion
Representati ve Doogan expressed concerns about "sentence
creep," which increased the anobunt of time spent in jail

t he amount of supervision and t he expense.

Representative Costello stated experience wth a case
related to sexual abuse of a m nor.

2:47:41 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze shared concerns about sentence creep but
wanted to "sentence sone creeps.”

There were no further objections.
CS HB 127(FIN was REPORTED out of Committee with

acconpanying new indetermnate fiscal note from the
Department of Administration and previously published

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



notes: FN 1 (DPS), FN 2 (LAW, FN 3 (ADM), FN 4 (COR), FN 5
( DHS) .

2:51:35 PM
AT EASE

2:52: 57 PM
RECONVENED

#hb175
HOUSE BILL NO. 175

"An Act relating to an appearance before a judicial

officer after arrest; relating to penalties for
operating a vehicle wthout possessing proof of notor
vehicle liability insurance or a driver's |icense;

relating to penalties for certain arson offenses;
anending Rule 5(a)(l1l), Aaska Rules of Crimnal
Pr ocedur e, and Rul e 43. 10, Al aska Rul es of
Adm ni stration; and providing for an effective date."

HB 175 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb203
HOUSE BI LL NO. 203

"An Act establishing and relating to the in-state gas
pi peline fund; and providing for an effective date."

2:53: 14 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT CSHB 203(FIN) (27-
LS0719\D, Kirsch, 3/29/11) as a working docunent before the
comittee.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, SPONSOR, discussed the new
CS. He explained that the legislation would establish an
instate gas pipeline fund in the general fund. The fund
would be nmanaged and invested by the Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC) according to the new CS.
MIllions of dollars were invested in the idea of an instate
gas pipeline. The funding and departnents have changed
mul tiple tinmes throughout the planning process. He stated

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



that the bill allows for a sinple manner of review ng the
funds spent on the project.

Co-Chair Stoltze withdrew his objection to the adoption of
t he CS.

Hearing NO further OBJECTION it was so ordered.

Representative WIson wondered whether people could place
their permanent funds into the account.

Representative Chenault replied no. The option did not
exi st, although he found the idea worthy of exploration.

Representative W/Ison understood that many Al askans in her
district expressed interest in the option.

Co-Chair Stoltze conmented that the current configuration
of "Pick, dick, and G ve" would not permt the option

2:56:58 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze was anxious to find a nechanism to the
address gas shortages in Al aska.

Representative Chenault stressed the seriousness of the
i ssue. He discussed the future of Alaska' s energy supply
and necessary jobs. He believed that a great investnent was
war r ant ed.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough discussed a pipe dream She proposed
the idea of including the Al askan citizens, by allow ng
them to invest. She expressed interest in buying shares in
t he ownership of an instate gasline.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough noved Anmendnent nunber 1.
Co-Chair Stoltze objected for discussion.

TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE M KE CHENAULT, discussed
that the amendnent had been proposed by DOR for clarity. He
stated that Page 1, Line 8, followng "lapses," neans that
any funds that remain within the fund |apse back into the
general fund. He continued with Page 2, Line one follow ng
"and," the |anguage was changed to read "shall remain in."
Any interest accrued by the account should stay within the
fund or appropriated by the | egislature back into the fund.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



3:02:56 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze renoved his objection.
Hearing no other objections the anendnent was adopt ed.
Co-Chair Stoltze discussed the zero fiscal note.

Representative Chenault echoed the coments of Vice-chair
Faircl ough regarding Al askans making a personal investnent
in the project for a guaranteed rate of return. He recalled
Al askan conpanies that were also interested in the
potential investnent.

Representative Hawker discussed that the legislation
allowed the AGDC the opportunity to open a bank account,
which was an inportant step towards assuring the
transparency of the corporation. He stressed the urgency of
the situation

Representati ve Edgnon expressed support for t he
| egi sl ati on.

3:07:44 PM

DANI EL FAUSKE, CH EF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATI ON (via
tel econference), echoed the prior testinony and offered to
answer questions.

Representative Gara supported the I|egislation, but pointed
out the difficult future decision regarding the various
options for production of Al askan natural gas.

M. Fauske noted the requirenent of a report detailing the
anal ysis on the wide variety of options. The report was due
on July 1, 2011. He nentioned that results of the nany
studies were expected to arrive. He preferred the |arger
export line, but agreed that each potential project nust be
properly vetted.

Co- Chair Thomas pointed out HB 152, a funding bill that
passed out of the commttee a few years prior

3:13:12 PM

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



Representative CQuttenberg appreciated that the governor in
the 1950s had the foresight to make statenments simlar to
those made today. He viewed the gasline as a utility that
woul d provi de great econom c benefit to Al askans.

Representative WI|son asked M. Fauske whether there were
other funding options that would be provided in July's
report.

M. Fauske responded in the affirmative. The report would
provide estimates, detailed analysis regarding reconmended
financing strategies, analysis of the tax exenpt fi nancing,
and recomrendations regarding fund equity positions.

3:19:15 PM

Representative WIson stressed that the people of Alaska
would really like to be a part of the project.

M . Fauske believed that was a good suggesti on.
Co-Chair Stoltze opened and cl osed public testinony.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to report CS HB 203 (FIN) out
of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

CS HB 203 (FIN was REPORTED out of conmttee with a "do
pass" reconmendation and with new zero inpact fiscal note
fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

3:20: 53 PM

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:20 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/01/11 1:34 P. M



